
Any person who requires accommodation to participate in this meeting should contact the District office at (909) 797-5117, at least 
48 hours prior to the meeting to request a disability-related modification or accommodation. 

Materials that are provided to the Board of Directors after the meeting packet is compiled and distributed will be made available 
for public review during normal business hours at the District office located at 12770 Second Street, Yucaipa.  Meeting materials 
are also available on the District’s website at www.yvwd.dst.ca.us 

12770 Second Street, Yucaipa, California 92399 Phone: (909) 797-5117 

Notice and Agenda of a Regular Meeting 
of the Board of Directors 

Tuesday, March 6, 2018 at 6:00 p.m. 

I. CALL TO ORDER - Pledge of Allegiance

II. ROLL CALL

III. PUBLIC COMMENTS - At this time, members of the public may address the Board of Directors on matters
within its jurisdiction.  To provide comments on specific agenda items, please complete a speaker’s request
form and provide the completed form to the Board Secretary prior to the board meeting.

IV. CONSENT CALENDAR - All consent calendar matters are routine and will be acted upon in one motion.
There will be no discussion of these items unless board members, administrative staff, or members of the
public request specific items to be discussed and/or removed prior to the vote for approval.

A. Minutes of Meetings

1. Regular Board Meeting - February 20, 2018

2. Board Workshop - February 27, 2018

B. Settlement Agreement and General Release for an Easement Acquisition

V. STAFF REPORT

VI. DISCUSSION ITEMS

A. Consideration of an Agreement with the City of Yucaipa for the Installation of a Parallel
Sewer Segment of Mainline on 6th Place as part of the Proposed Wildwood Creek Bridge
Improvements [Director Memorandum No. 18-039 - Page 21 of 63]

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  That the Board authorizes the General Manager to 
execute the attached agreement. 

B. Consideration of Resolution No. 2018-12 Updating the Water Meter Installation Fees for
Drinking Water and Recycled Water and Identifying the Use of 50” Water Meter Boxes for
Drinking Water and Recycled Water Infrastructure [Director Memorandum No. 18-040 -
Page 25 of 63]

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  That the Board adopts Resolution No. 2018-12. 

C. Appointment of a Representative to the San Bernardino Basin Groundwater Council
[Director Memorandum No. 18-041 - Page 30 of 63]

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  That the Board authorizes and appoints the General 
Manager to the San Bernardino Basin Groundwater Council. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - March 6, 2018 - Page 1 of 63

http://www.yvwd.dst.ca.us/


 
Page 2 

D. Overview of a Claim for Damages at 35553 Grandview Drive, Yucaipa - Zaldivar [Director 
Memorandum No. 18-042 - Page 31 of 63] 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  That the Board denies the claim for damages based 
on the information that was provided and refers the claim to the District’s insurance 
carrier for processing. 

E. Consideration of Development Agreement No. 2018-05 for Water and Sewer Service to 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 19822 - Moran [Director Memorandum No. 18-043 - Page 37 of 
63] 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  That the Board authorizes the execution of 
Development Agreement No. 2018-05 for Two Parcels within Tentative Parcel Map 
No. 19822 - Mike Moran 

F. Consideration of Development Agreement No. 2018-03 to Provide Sewer Service to Tract 
Number 18167 - MBTK Homes [Director Memorandum No. 18-044 - Page 38 of 63] 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  That the Board authorizes the execution of 
Development Agreement No. 2018-03. 

VII. BOARD REPORTS & DIRECTOR COMMENTS 

VIII. CLOSED SESSION 

A. Conference with Real Property Negotiator (Government Code 54956.8) 
Property:  Assessor’s Parcel Numbers: 0301-211-020 and 0301-201-030 
Agency Negotiator:  Joseph Zoba, General Manager  
Negotiating Parties:  Mesa Verde Ventures LLC c/o Betek Corporation Under 
Under Negotiation: Terms of Payment and Price 

B. Conference with Legal Counsel Existing Litigation Government Code, Section 54956.9(d)  
- Robinson Ranch vs Yucaipa Valley Water District; 
San Bernardino Superior Court Case No. CIVDS 1712116 

C. Conference with Legal Counsel - Anticipated Litigation (Government Code 54956.9(b)) - 
Two Cases 

IX. ANNOUNCEMENTS 

A. March 8, 2018 at 4:00 p.m. - Strategic Planning Workshop 

B. March 13, 2018 at 4:00 p.m. - Board Workshop  

C. March 20, 2018 at 6:00 p.m. - Regular Board Meeting  

D. March 27, 2018 at 4:00 p.m. - Board Workshop  

E. April 3, 2018 at 6:00 p.m. - Regular Board Meeting 

F. April 10, 2018 at 4:00 p.m. - Board Workshop  

G. April 17, 2018 at 6:00 p.m. - Regular Board Meeting  

H. April 24, 2018 at 4:00 p.m. - Board Workshop  

I. May 1, 2018 at 6:00 p.m. - Regular Board Meeting 

J. May 8, 2018 at 4:00 p.m. - Board Workshop  

K. May 15, 2018 at 6:00 p.m. - Regular Board Meeting  

L. May 29, 2018 at 4:00 p.m. - Board Workshop  

M. June 5, 2018 at 6:00 p.m. - Regular Board Meeting  

X. ADJOURNMENT 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - March 6, 2018 - Page 2 of 63



 

Consent Calendar 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District - March 6, 2018 - Page 3 of 63



Yucaipa Valley Water District Page 1 of 6 

MINUTES OF A REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
 

February 20, 2018 at 6:00 P.M. 
 

 

CALL TO ORDER The regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Yucaipa 
Valley Water District was called to order by Director Jay Bogh at 
6:00 p.m. at the Administrative Office Building, 12770 Second 
Street, Yucaipa, California. 

FLAG SALUTE Director Jay Bogh led the pledge of allegiance. 

ROLL CALL The roll was called with Director Jay Bogh, Director Bruce 
Granlund, Director Lonni Granlund, and Director Chris Mann 
present.  Director Tom Shalhoub was absent. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS None 

CONSENT CALENDAR General Manager Joseph Zoba requested item D. be removed 
from the Consent Calendar. 
 
Director Chris Mann moved to approve items A, B, and C of the 
consent calendar and Director Lonni Granlund seconded the 
motion. 
 
A. Minutes of Meetings 

1. Regular Board Meeting - February 6, 2018 

2. Board Workshop - February 13, 2018 

B. Payment of Bills 

1. Approve/Ratify Invoices for Board Awarded Contracts 

Directors Present: Staff Present: 
 Jay Bogh, President 

Bruce Granlund, Vice President 
Lonni Granlund, Director  
Chris Mann, Director 

Joseph Zoba, General Manager 
Kathryn Hallberg, Management Analyst 
Matthew Porras, Management Analyst 
Mike Kostelecky, Operations Manager 
Kevin Lee, Interim Operations Manager  
Thaxton Van Belle, Interim Operations Manager 
John Wrobel, Public Works Manager 

 
Directors Absent: Consulting Staff Present: 
 Tom Shalhoub, Director David Wysocki, Legal Counsel 
 
Registered Guests and Others Present: 
 Steven Leach, Senior Staff Scientist, Novozymes 

Leonard Stephenson, San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - March 6, 2018 - Page 4 of 63



Yucaipa Valley Water District Page 2 of 6 

2. Ratify General Expenses for January 2018

C. Amendment No. 13 to Employment Agreement with Joseph
B. Zoba

D. Settlement Agreement and General Release for an
Easement Acquisition 

The motion was approved by the following vote: 
Director Jay Bogh - Yes 
Director Bruce Granlund - Yes 
Director Lonni Granlund - Yes 
Director Chris Mann - Yes 
Director Tom Shalhoub - Absent 

STAFF REPORT General Manager Joseph Zoba reported and provided 
information about the following items: 

• A ‘Water Grab”? Southern California water agency eyes
possible control of Delta tunnels project, The
Sacramento Bee, February 13, 2018 was provided in
the board meeting packet.

• San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District will be
hosting a grand opening event for the East Branch
Extension II of the State Water Project at the Citrus
Reservoir and Pump Station on Thursday, February 22,
2018.

• A board workshop will be conducted on March 2, 2018
at the Crafton Hills Fire Academy.

• A strategic planning workshop will be held on Thursday,
March 8, 2018 at 4:00 pm to review future capital
improvements.

• The Orange County Water Summit will be held on June
1, 2018.

• Mr. Steven Leach, Senior Scientist from Novozymes
provided an overview of the active biological
communities at the Wochholz Regional Water Recycling
Facility.  Mr. Leach is working with the District staff to
study and resolve the filamentous bacteria Nocardia that
causes foaming in the wastewater treatment process.

Yucaipa Valley Water District - March 6, 2018 - Page 5 of 63



Yucaipa Valley Water District Page 3 of 6 

DISCUSSION ITEMS: 

DM 18-032 

AUTHORIZATION TO 
PROCEED WITH THE 
REHABILITATION AND 
REFURBISHMENT OF 
BELT PRESS NO. 1 
AND NO. 2 AT THE 
WOCHHOLZ REGIONAL 
WATER RECYCLING 
FACILITY 

Interim Operations Manager Kevin Lee discussed the 
rehabilitation and refurbishment of Belt Press No. 1 and Belt 
Press No. 2 at the Wochholz Regional Water Recycling Facility. 
The District staff recommended adding Option 1 (two times 
$16,130) and Option 2 (two times $5,940) to the original 
recommendation of $349,561 for a total authorization of 
$393,701. 

Following a discussion by the Board of Directors, Director Lonni 
Granlund moved to direct District staff to authorize the District 
staff to proceed with rebuilding two belt filter press units with 
option 1 and 2 for a sum not to exceed $393,701.  Director 
Bruce Granlund seconded the motion. 

The motion was approved by the following vote: 
Director Jay Bogh - Yes 
Director Bruce Granlund - Yes 
Director Lonni Granlund - Yes 
Director Chris Mann - Yes 
Director Tom Shalhoub - Absent 

DM 18-033 

RATIFICATION OF 
EMERGENCY 
STRUCTURAL REPAIRS 
FOR DRINKING WATER 
RESERVOIR R-17.1.1 

Operations Manager Mike Kostelecky discussed the ratification 
of emergency structural repairs to drinking water reservoir R-
17.1.1  

Following a discussion by the Board of Directors, Director Bruce 
Granlund moved to ratify the emergency repairs to Reservoir R-
17.1.1 with Superior Tank Solutions for a sum not to exceed 
$47,340.  Director Chris Mann seconded the motion. 

The motion was approved by the following vote: 
Director Jay Bogh - Yes 
Director Bruce Granlund - Yes 
Director Lonni Granlund - Yes 
Director Chris Mann - Yes 
Director Tom Shalhoub - Absent 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - March 6, 2018 - Page 6 of 63



Yucaipa Valley Water District Page 4 of 6 

DM 18-034 

SOLE SOURCE 
PROCUREMENT FOR 
THE REPLACEMENT 
OF PRIMARY 
CLARIFIER 
EQUIPMENT AT THE 
WOCHHOLZ REGIONAL 
WATER RECYCLING 
FACILITY 

Interim Operations Manager Thaxton Van Belle discussed the 
authorization for sole source procurement related to the 
replacement of primary clarifier equipment at the Wochholz 
Regional Water Recycling Facility.  

Following a discussion by the Board of Directors, Director Bruce 
Granlund moved to approve and authorize the Single/Sole 
Source Justification for Brentwood Industries / Polychem 
Systems for an estimated amount of $160,000.  Director Lonni 
Granlund seconded the motion. 

The motion was approved by the following vote: 
Director Jay Bogh - Yes 
Director Bruce Granlund - Yes 
Director Lonni Granlund - Yes 
Director Chris Mann - Yes 
Director Tom Shalhoub - Absent 

DM 18-035 

AWARD OF A 
CONSTRUCTION 
CONTRACT FOR 
YUCAIPA BOULEVARD 
SEWER – HAMPTON 
ROAD TO 18TH STREET 

Management Analyst Matthew Porras presented the bid results 
for the construction of a sewer mainline on Yucaipa Boulevard 
near Hampton Road.  

Following a discussion by the Board of Directors, Director Lonni 
Granlund moved to awards a construction contract to Weka, Inc. 
for a sum not to exceed $526,193.  Director Bruce Granlund 
seconded the motion. 

The motion was approved by the following vote: 
Director Jay Bogh - Yes 
Director Bruce Granlund - Yes 
Director Lonni Granlund - Yes 
Director Chris Mann - Yes 
Director Tom Shalhoub - Absent 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - March 6, 2018 - Page 7 of 63



Yucaipa Valley Water District Page 5 of 6 

DM 18-036 
 
PRESENTATION OF 
THE UNAUDITED 
FINANCIAL REPORT 
FOR THE PERIOD 
ENDING ON JANUARY 
31, 2018 

General Manager Joseph Zoba presented information about the 
unaudited financial report for the period ending on January 31, 
2018.  
 
Following a discussion by the Board of Directors, Director Lonni 
Granlund moved to receive and file the unaudited financial 
report.  Director Chris Mann seconded the motion. 
 
The motion was approved by the following vote: 

Director Jay Bogh - Yes 
Director Bruce Granlund - Yes 
Director Lonni Granlund - Yes 
Director Chris Mann - Yes 
Director Tom Shalhoub - Absent 
 

DM 18-037 
 
NOMINATION OF 
REGULAR SPECIAL 
DISTRICT AND 
ALTERNATE SPECIAL 
DISTRICT MEMBERS 
OF THE COUNTYWIDE 
OVERSIGHT BOARD 
FOR REDEVELOPMENT 

General Manager Joseph Zoba discussed the nomination of a 
regular and alternate member for the Countywide Oversight 
Board for Redevelopment. 
 
Following a discussion by the Board of Directors, Director Bruce 
Granlund moved to nominate Chris Mann as the regular and 
alternate special district member for the Countywide Oversight 
Board for Redevelopment.  Director Lonni Granlund seconded 
the motion. 
 
The motion was approved by the following vote: 

Director Jay Bogh - Yes 
Director Bruce Granlund - Yes 
Director Lonni Granlund - Yes 
Director Chris Mann - Yes 
Director Tom Shalhoub - Absent 
 

DM 18-038 
 
CONSIDERATION OF A 
DEVELOPMENT 
AGREEMENT NO. 2018-
04 FOR DRINKING 
WATER, RECYCLED 
WATER AND SEWER 
SERVICE TO TRACT 
NO. 14297 - YUCAIPA 

Management Analyst Matthew Porras discussed Development 
Agreement No. 2018-04 for Tract No. 14297. 
 
Following a discussion by the Board of Directors, Director Chris 
Mann moved to approve Development Agreement No. 2018-04.  
Director Bruce Granlund seconded the motion. 
 
The motion was approved by the following vote: 

Director Jay Bogh - Yes 
Director Bruce Granlund - Yes 
Director Lonni Granlund - Yes 
Director Chris Mann - Yes 
Director Tom Shalhoub - Absent 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - March 6, 2018 - Page 8 of 63



Yucaipa Valley Water District Page 6 of 6 

BOARD REPORTS AND 
DIRECTOR COMMENTS 

• Director Lonni Granlund reported on her attendance at the 
California Special District Association Leadership Academy. 

• Director Lonni Granlund reported on the San Gorgonio Pass 
Water Agency Engineering Workshop on February 12, 2018.  

• Director Bruce Granlund reported on the San Gorgonio Pass 
Water Agency Engineering Workshop on February 12, 2018. 

• Director Chris Mann reported on the Yucaipa City Council 
meeting on February 12, 2018. 
 

CLOSED SESSION A closed session was not conducted. 
 

ANNOUNCEMENTS Director Jay Bogh called attention to the announcements listed 
on the agenda.   
 

ADJOURNMENT The meeting was adjourned at 6:40 p.m.   
 

 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
      
Joseph B. Zoba, Secretary       (Seal) 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - March 6, 2018 - Page 9 of 63



Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop Minutes Page 1 of 3 

MINUTES OF A BOARD WORKSHOP 
 

February 27, 2018 at 4:00 P.M. 
 
 
Directors Present: Staff Present: 
 Jay Bogh, President 

Bruce Granlund, Vice President 
Lonni Granlund, Director 
Chris Mann, Director  
Tom Shalhoub, Director 

Joseph Zoba, General Manager  
Allison Edmisten, Chief Financial Officer 
Katie Hallberg, Management Analyst 
Matthew Porras, Management Analyst 
Mike Kostelecky, Operations Manager 
Kevin Lee, Interim Operations Manager 
Ashley Gibson, Water Resource Supervisor 
Mike Rivera, Public Works Supervisor 
Chelsie Fogus, Engineering Technician 
Ron Elisalda, Utility Service Worker 
Dustin Hochreiter, Utility Service Worker 
 

 
Directors Absent: Consulting Staff Present: 
 None David Wysocki, Legal Counsel 
 
Guests and Others Present: 
 Linda Shelton, Customer 

Kevin Garcia, Customer 
John Ohanian, Terra Verde Group LLC 
Leonard Stephenson, San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency 

 
I. Call to Order - 4:00 p.m. 

II. Public Comments: None 

III. Staff Report: 

• General Manager Joseph Zoba discussed the importance of the articles distributed 
with the board workshop packet. 

• General Manager Joseph Zoba provided information about future meetings. 

IV. Presentations 

A. Applications and Uses of Photogrammetry Technology [Workshop Memorandum 
No. 18-067] - Management Analyst Katie Hallberg and Public Works Supervisor 
Mike Rivera discussed applications and uses of photogrammetry technology. 

B. Overview of a Brine Management Wetland Project - Goodyear, Arizona [Workshop 
Memorandum No. 18-068] - Management Analyst Katie Hallberg provided an 
overview of a brine management wetland project in Goodyear, Arizona. 

V. Operational Updates 

A. The Benefits of Implementing Water and Wastewater DNA Sequencing Strategy 
[Workshop Memorandum No. 18-069] - Management Analyst Katie Hallberg 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - March 6, 2018 - Page 10 of 63



Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop Minutes Page 2 of 3 

discussed the benefits of implementing a water and wastewater DNA sequencing 
strategy. 

B. Status Report of Water Mainline Breaks in the Wildwood Canyon Area [Workshop 
Memorandum No. 18-070] - Operations Manager Mike Kostelecky provided a 
status report of water mainline breaks in the Wildwood Canyon area. 

VI. Capital Improvement Projects  

A. Status Report on the Installation of a Parallel Sewer Segment of Mainline on 6th 
Place as part of the Proposed Wildwood Creek Bridge Improvements [Workshop 
Memorandum No. 18-071] - Management Analyst Matthew Porras provided a 
status report on the installation of a parallel sewer segment of mainline on 6th 
Place as part of the proposed Wildwood Creek Bridge improvements. 

B. Status Report on the Emergency Repairs for Drinking Water Reservoir 17.1.1 
[Workshop Memorandum No. 18-072] - Operations Manager Mike Kostelecky 
provided a status report on the emergency repairs for Drinking Water Reservoir 
17.1.1. 

VII. Policy Issues 

A. Discussion Regarding a Draft Resolution for the Implementation of 50” Water 
Meter Boxes for Drinking Water and Recycled Water Infrastructure [Workshop 
Memorandum No. 18-073] - General Manager Joseph Zoba discussed a draft 
resolution for the implementation of 50” water meter boxes for Drinking Water and 
Recycled Water infrastructure. 

B. Discussion Regarding the Development of a Policy Related to Accessory Dwelling 
Units and Other Multiple Unit Developments [Workshop Memorandum No. 18-074] 
- General Manager Joseph Zoba discussed the development of a policy related to 
accessory dwelling units and other multiple unit developments. 

C. Overview of the Western Coalition of Arid States (WESTCAS) Legislative 
Workshop [Workshop Memorandum No. 18-075] - Management Analyst Matthew 
Porras overview of the Western Coalition of Arid States (WESTCAS) Legislative 
Workshop. 

VIII. Development Projects 

A. Discussion Regarding a Development Agreement for Sewer Service to Property 
Located on Avenue H, Yucaipa as Tract No. 18167 - MBTK Homes [Workshop 
Memorandum No. 18-076] - General Manager Joseph Zoba discussed a 
Development Agreement for Sewer Service to property located on Avenue H, 
Yucaipa as Tract No. 18167. 

IX. Administrative Issues 

A. Overview of the Draft 2017 Consolidated Annual Report and Engineering Report 
of the Beaumont Basin Watermaster [Workshop Memorandum No. 18-077] - 
General Manager Joseph Zoba provided an overview of the Draft 2017 
Consolidated Annual Report and Engineering Report of the Beaumont Basin 
Watermaster. 

X. Director Comments – Director Tom Shalhoub recognized the professionalism and 
dedication of the District staff members. 

XI. Closed Session – None. 

X. Adjournment - The meeting was adjourned at 5:20 p.m. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - March 6, 2018 - Page 11 of 63



Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop Minutes Page 3 of 3 

 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 

Joseph B. Zoba, Secretary 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - March 6, 2018 - Page 12 of 63



Yucaipa Valley Water District - March 6, 2018 - Page 13 of 63



Yucaipa Valley Water District - March 6, 2018 - Page 14 of 63



Yucaipa Valley Water District - March 6, 2018 - Page 15 of 63



Yucaipa Valley Water District - March 6, 2018 - Page 16 of 63



Yucaipa Valley Water District - March 6, 2018 - Page 17 of 63



Yucaipa Valley Water District - March 6, 2018 - Page 18 of 63



 

Staff Report 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District - March 6, 2018 - Page 19 of 63



 

Discussion Items 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District - March 6, 2018 - Page 20 of 63



 

Director Memorandum 18-039 

Date: March 6, 2018 

Prepared By: Matt Porras, Management Analyst 

Subject: Consideration of an Agreement with the City of Yucaipa for the Installation of 
a Parallel Sewer Segment of Mainline on 6th Place as part of the Proposed 
Wildwood Creek Bridge Improvements 

Recommendation: That the Board authorizes the General Manager to execute the attached 
agreement. 

 
The District staff has been coordinating with the City of Yucaipa for the construction of a bridge 
on Sixth Place to at the crossing of Wildwood Creek. 
 
The District staff is proposing to install a spare sewer mainline in Sixth Place together with the 
box culvert construction proposed by the City of Yucaipa.  The installation of this segment of 
sewer will provide alternatives for the replacement and extension of sewer mainlines in the 
Districts’ service area. 
 
 
 
 

 
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - March 6, 2018 - Page 21 of 63



Director Memorandum No. 18-039  Page 2 of 4 

6th PLACE – SOUTH OF WILDWOOD CANYON  
AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN 

THE CITY OF YUCAIPA AND THE YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
February 15, 2018 

 
The City of Yucaipa, a Municipal Corporation, hereinafter referred to as “City”, and Yucaipa Valley 
Water District, a Special District, hereinafter referred to as “District”, hereby mutually agree as 
follows: 
 
A. Purpose of Agreement.  The City is in the 

process of improving the low water crossing in 
6th Place by means of installing a box culvert 
and raising the road surface elevation.  To 
protect the District’s existing sewer 
infrastructure, a concrete encasement 
structure will be installed over the sewer by the 
City.  The District will provide material and 
compensate the City for the excavation, 
construction and backfilling of a parallel sewer 
pipe segment, 55 linear feet in length, to be 
installed within the encasement. 

 
B. Scope of Agreement.  The Scope of the 

Agreement includes: 
 
1. The District will provide the construction design changes for the HDPE pipe 

segment to the City in their requested format. 
2. The District will furnish the 55’ HDPE pipeline material to be Project Site and pay 

fair compensation in the amount of $1,200 to the City. 
3. The City shall direct their contractor to install the HDPE pipeline segment, end 

caps, and pipeline locating devices as provided and desired by the District. 
4. The City shall install a concrete encasement structure to protect the existing sewer 

mainline and HDPE pipeline segment. 
5. The District will provide the necessary construction inspection services to the City’s 

project relating to the District’s infrastructure at no cost to the City.  
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City of Yucaipa and the Yucaipa Valley Water District have 
executed this Agreement the day and year first written below. 
 
The City and District hereby agree to the full performance of the covenants and conditions 
contained herein. 
 

City of Yucaipa  Yucaipa Valley Water District 
   

Ray Casey, City Manager  Joseph Zoba, General Manager 

   

Date  Date 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - March 6, 2018 - Page 22 of 63



Director Memorandum No. 18-039  Page 3 of 4 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - March 6, 2018 - Page 23 of 63



Director Memorandum No. 18-039  Page 4 of 4 

 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - March 6, 2018 - Page 24 of 63



 

Director Memorandum 18-040 

Date: March 6, 2018 

Prepared By: Joseph Zoba, General Manager 

Subject: Consideration of Resolution No. 2018-12 Updating the Water Meter 
Installation Fees for Drinking Water and Recycled Water and Identifying the 
Use of 50” Water Meter Boxes for Drinking Water and Recycled Water 
Infrastructure 

Recommendation: That the Board adopts Resolution No. 2018-12. 

 
At several recent workshop 
meetings, the Board of Directors 
discussed the installation of the 50” 
long water meter boxes for new 
development.  These larger water 
meter boxes are useful to protect the 
Advance Meter Infrastructure (AMI) 
equipment as well as provide ample 
space to meet the fire sprinkler 
requirements for new construction. 
 
 

  
YVWD standard meter boxes for dual-plumbed communities. 

 

 
YVWD meter box without a sidewalk for a large-lot, rural application. 

  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - March 6, 2018 - Page 25 of 63



Director Memorandum No. 18-040  Page 2 of 5 

RESOLUTION NO 2018-12 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
UPDATING THE WATER METER INSTALLATION FEES FOR DRINKING WATER 
AND RECYCLED WATER AND IDENTIFYING THE USE OF 50” WATER METER 
BOXES FOR DRINKING WATER AND RECYCLED WATER INFRASTRUCTURE 

 
 
WHEREAS, the Yucaipa Valley Water District (the “District”) has updated the cost for installing 
drinking water and recycled water meters based on a cost evaluation associated with providing 
this service; and  
 
WHEREAS, the District has updated the water meter service standards and individual parts list 
to address residential fire sprinkler requirements, dual-plumbed backflow protection, and 
automated meter infrastructure technology; and  
 
WHEREAS, the District staff has presented the cost information and options for cost recovery at 
publicly noticed meetings and workshops; and 
 
WHEREAS, the District desires to implement the use of 50” water meter boxes for the protection 
of drinking water and recycled water infrastructure. 
 

____________________ 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the District that the following 
Guidelines are hereby adopted: 
 
1. Drinking Water and Recycled Water Meter Installation Charge.  The cost associated with the 

installation of water meters shall be as follows: 
 

Classification of Water Meter Installation 
Water Meter 

Installation Fee 

¾” Drinking Water Meter Installation $490 

¾” Recycled Water Meter Installation $490 

1” Recycled Water Meter Installation $560 

1” Drinking Water Meter Installation with Fire Sprinklers $860 

1” Drinking Water Meter Installation with Fire Sprinklers at a Dual-
Plumbed Residential Dwelling 

$1,030 

 
The Water Meter Installation Fee shall be paid prior to scheduling the installation of the water 
meter. 
 

2. Larger Drinking Water and Recycled Water Meter Installation Charge.  The charge for the 
installation of a larger water meter and/or a water meter classification not provided above 
shall be the actual cost of all labor, material, and equipment charges, plus employee benefits, 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - March 6, 2018 - Page 26 of 63



Director Memorandum No. 18-040  Page 3 of 5 

overhead, and administrative surcharges pursuant to the latest District resolution.  A deposit 
of the estimated water meter installation cost shall be paid prior to scheduling the work.  Any 
variance from the estimated water meter installation cost shall be remedied by District staff 
and the customer within 30 days following the activation of the water meter.  Typical 
delinquent charges shall apply for unpaid amounts owed to the District. 

 
3. Requirements for the Installation of a 50” Water Meter Box.  The Yucaipa Valley Water 

District has adopted standard drawings and specifications related to the use of a 50” water 
meter box to protect the infrastructure necessary to provide drinking water and recycled water 
service to our customers.  The following conditions will require the installation of a 50” water 
meter box for drinking water and recycled water applications: 
 
A. All new residential developments required to install curb, gutters and sidewalks. 

 
i. Residential developments consisting of four (4) or less dwelling units on 

individual parcels will be provided an opportunity to purchase a 50” water 
meter box from the District inventory as provided below: 
 

50” Water Meter Box $195.83 
Solid Cover for Half of Box $109.86 
AMI Preparation and Reading Lid Cutout  $122.06 
Reading Lid Insert $  16.00 

Total $443.75 
 
Rounded $445.00 

 
The 50” water meter box will be available for pickup from the District office by 
the property owner and does not include the cost of water meter related 
appurtenances. 

 
B. All non-residential development, including but not limited to commercial, institutional, 

and industrial projects. 
 
C. All installations of recycled water meters and related infrastructure. 
 
D. Replacements of existing drinking water or recycled water service pipelines when 

they exist in a sidewalk.  If a sidewalk does not exist, written authorization is required 
from the property owner prior to the installation of a 50” water meter box at the time 
of service line replacement.  Without prior written authorization, a meter box that 
matches the existing meter box will be reinstalled. 

 
3. Effective Date.  Previous resolutions regarding water meter installation charges are hereby 

superseded and replaced by the applicable sections identified above.  This Resolution shall 
be effective immediately and shall remain in effect until it is rescinded or superseded.   

 
 
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - March 6, 2018 - Page 27 of 63



Director Memorandum No. 18-040  Page 4 of 5 

PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this 6th day of March 2018. 
 
  YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 

   

  Jay Bogh, President Board of Directors 

   
ATTEST:   

   

Joseph B. Zoba, General Manager   

 
 
 
 

 
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - March 6, 2018 - Page 28 of 63



Director Memorandum No. 18-040  Page 5 of 5 

 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE 
AND SAN BERNARDINO 
 

 
 
 
I, Joseph B. Zoba, Secretary of the Board of Directors of the Yucaipa Valley Water District, 
California, do hereby certify that the foregoing resolution being Resolution No. 2018-12 was duly 
passed, approved and adopted by said Board, approved and signed by the President, and 
attested by the Secretary at the Regular Meeting held on the 6th day of March 2018, and that the 
same was passed and adopted by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  
 
NOES:  
 
ABSTAIN:  
 
ABSENT:  
 
 
 
 
 

  Joseph B. Zoba, Secretary of the Yucaipa Valley 
Water District and of the Board of Directors 

 
 
 
 
 

(Seal) 
 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - March 6, 2018 - Page 29 of 63



 

Director Memorandum 18-041 

Date: March 6, 2018 

Prepared By: Joseph Zoba, General Manager 

Subject: Appointment of a Representative to the San Bernardino Basin Groundwater 
Council 

Recommendation: That the Board authorizes and appoints the General Manager to the San 
Bernardino Basin Groundwater Council. 

 
On February 6, 2018, the Board of Directors approved the San Bernardino Basin Groundwater 
Council Framework Agreement [Director Memorandum No. 18-022]. 
 
Section 3.4 of the Agreement states: 
 

Appointment of Members to the GC.  Each Party or other entity 
entitled to membership on the GC shall appoint one representative 
member of the GC, who shall be the senior executive management 
level employee of the Party, or a senior executive management-
level employee of other recognized groundwater management 
entity.  Each eligible member may determine its own process for 
appointing its representative member.  Members of the GC shall 
serve throughout the term of this agreement, provided that such 
members may be subject to removal and replacement by the 
appointing Party in the event the representative is no longer in the 
employ of the appointing Party.    

 
Based on this provision of the agreement, District staff recommends that the Board of Directors 
appoint the general manager to the San Bernardino Basin Groundwater Council. 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - March 6, 2018 - Page 30 of 63



 

Director Memorandum 18-042 

Date: March 6, 2018 

Prepared By: Matthew Porras, Management Analyst 

Subject: Overview of a Claim for Damages at 35553 Grandview Drive, Yucaipa - 
Zaldivar 

Recommendation: That the Board denies the claim for damages based on the information 
that was provided and refers the claim to the District’s insurance carrier 
for processing. 

 
On Thursday, January 4, 2018 Drinking Water Reservoir 14.2 was over flowed due to 
communications inconsistencies caused by an unidentified signal interferer.  The interference with 
the communication resulted in a loss of 228,000 gallons of water that flowed to the property at 
35553 Grandview Drive.   
 
The Claimant states that the water caused damage to the front/back yards and a paver patio that 
was in the process of being completed. 
 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
The Claimant also submitted a quote for the repair of the damages to the yard in the sum of 
$22,381. 
 
 
Options for Consideration: 

 

• Option #1 – Deny the claim based on the information that was provided. Referring this 
claim to the District insurance company for further processing. 
 

• Option #2 – Direct District staff to obtain additional quotes for repairs and bring the results 
to the Board of Directors for a future decision.  

 
 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - March 6, 2018 - Page 31 of 63



Director Memorandum No. 18-042  Page 2 of 6 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - March 6, 2018 - Page 32 of 63



Director Memorandum No. 18-042  Page 3 of 6 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - March 6, 2018 - Page 33 of 63



Director Memorandum No. 18-042  Page 4 of 6 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - March 6, 2018 - Page 34 of 63



Director Memorandum No. 18-042  Page 5 of 6 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - March 6, 2018 - Page 35 of 63



Director Memorandum No. 18-042  Page 6 of 6 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - March 6, 2018 - Page 36 of 63



 

Director Memorandum 18-043 

Date: March 6, 2018 

Prepared By: Joseph Zoba, General Manager 

Subject: Consideration of Development Agreement No. 2018-05 for Water and Sewer 
Service to Tentative Parcel Map No. 19822 - Moran 

Recommendation: That the Board authorizes the execution of Development Agreement No. 
2018-05 for Two Parcels within Tentative Parcel Map No. 19822 - Mike 
Moran 

 
A proposed residential development in 
the City of Yucaipa is requesting the 
Board of Directors waive the District’s 
requirement for sewer connection of 
two parcels.  The adjacent 
development was to provide access to 
the sewer system, however, with the 
recent transfer of ownership of the 
adjacent parcels, the ability to connect 
to the sewer system has been 
impeded. 
 

 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - March 6, 2018 - Page 37 of 63



 

Director Memorandum 18-044 

Date: March 6, 2018 

Prepared By: Joseph Zoba, General Manager 

Subject: Consideration of Development Agreement No. 2018-03 to Provide Sewer 
Service to Tract Number 18167 - MBTK Homes 

Recommendation: That the Board authorizes the execution of Development Agreement No. 
2018-03. 

 
The District staff is working together with MBTK Homes for the development of 57 detached 
condominium units on 7.6 acres near Avenue H and 4th Street.  The District staff is in the process 
of preparing a development agreement to document the terms and conditions for sewer service to 
this project.   
 

 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - March 6, 2018 - Page 38 of 63



Director Memorandum No. 18-044  Page 2 of 16 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - March 6, 2018 - Page 39 of 63



Director Memorandum No. 18-044  Page 3 of 16 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - March 6, 2018 - Page 40 of 63



Director Memorandum No. 18-044  Page 4 of 16 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - March 6, 2018 - Page 41 of 63



Director Memorandum No. 18-044  Page 5 of 16 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - March 6, 2018 - Page 42 of 63



Director Memorandum No. 18-044  Page 6 of 16 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - March 6, 2018 - Page 43 of 63



Director Memorandum No. 18-044  Page 7 of 16 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - March 6, 2018 - Page 44 of 63



Director Memorandum No. 18-044  Page 8 of 16 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - March 6, 2018 - Page 45 of 63



Director Memorandum No. 18-044  Page 9 of 16 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - March 6, 2018 - Page 46 of 63



Director Memorandum No. 18-044  Page 10 of 16 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - March 6, 2018 - Page 47 of 63



Director Memorandum No. 18-044  Page 11 of 16 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - March 6, 2018 - Page 48 of 63



Director Memorandum No. 18-044  Page 12 of 16 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - March 6, 2018 - Page 49 of 63



Director Memorandum No. 18-044  Page 13 of 16 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - March 6, 2018 - Page 50 of 63



Director Memorandum No. 18-044  Page 14 of 16 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - March 6, 2018 - Page 51 of 63



Director Memorandum No. 18-044  Page 15 of 16 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - March 6, 2018 - Page 52 of 63



Director Memorandum No. 18-044  Page 16 of 16 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - March 6, 2018 - Page 53 of 63



 

 

Board Reports 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - March 6, 2018 - Page 54 of 63



 

 

Director Comments 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - March 6, 2018 - Page 55 of 63



January 2016 
 

 
 

FACTS ABOUT THE YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
 

Service Area Size: 40 square miles (sphere of influence is 68 square miles) 
 

Elevation Change: 3,140 foot elevation change (from 2,044 to 5,184 feet) 
 

Number of Employees: 5 elected board members 
62 full time employees 

 

Operating Budget: Water Division - $13,397,500 
 Sewer Division - $11,820,000 
 Recycled Water Division - $537,250 
 Total Annual Budget - $25,754,750 
 

Number of Services: 12,434 water connections serving 17,179 units 
13,559 sewer connections serving 20,519 units 
64 recycled water connections 

 

Water System: 215 miles of drinking water pipelines 
27 reservoirs - 34 million gallons of storage capacity 
18 pressure zones 
12,000 ac-ft annual water demand (3.9 billion gallons) 
Two water filtration facilities: 

- 1 mgd at Oak Glen Surface Water Filtration Facility 
- 12 mgd at Yucaipa Valley Regional Water Filtration Facility 

 

Sewer System: 8.0 million gallon treatment capacity - current flow at 4.0 mgd 
205 miles of sewer mainlines 
5 sewer lift stations 
4,500 ac-ft annual recycled water prod. (1.46 billion gallons) 

 

Recycled Water: 22 miles of recycled water pipelines 
5 reservoirs - 12 million gallons of storage 
1,200 ac-ft annual recycled demand (0.4 billion gallons) 

 

Brine Disposal:  2.2 million gallon desalination facility at sewer treatment plant 
1.108 million gallons of Inland Empire Brine Line capacity 

 0.295 million gallons of treatment capacity in Orange County  
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - March 6, 2018 - Page 56 of 63



January 2016 
 

State Water Contractors: San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District 
 San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency 
 

 
 

Sustainability Plan: A Strategic Plan for a Sustainable Future: The Integration and 
Preservation of Resources, adopted on August 20, 2008. 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - March 6, 2018 - Page 57 of 63



January 2016 
 

 
  

THE MEASUREMENT OF WATER PURITY 
 

One part per hundred is generally represented by the percent (%).  
This is equivalent to about fifteen minutes out of one day. 

 
One part per thousand denotes one part per 1000 parts.  

This is equivalent to about one and a half minutes out of one day. 
 
One part per million (ppm) denotes one part per 1,000,000 parts.  

This is equivalent to about 32 seconds out of a year. 
 
One part per billion (ppb) denotes one part per 1,000,000,000 parts.   

This is equivalent to about three seconds out of a century. 
 
One part per trillion (ppt) denotes one part per 1,000,000,000,000 parts. 

This is equivalent to about three seconds out of every hundred thousand years. 
 
One part per quadrillion (ppq) denotes one part per 1,000,000,000,000,000 parts.  

This is equivalent to about two and a half minutes out of the age of the Earth (4.5 
billion years).  

 

 
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - March 6, 2018 - Page 58 of 63



January 2016 
 

 
  

GLOSSARY OF COMMONLY USED TERMS 
 
Every profession has specialized terms which generally evolve to facilitate communication between individuals.  
The routine use of these terms tends to exclude those who are unfamiliar with the particular specialized language 
of the group.  Sometimes jargon can create communication cause difficulties where professionals in related fields 
use different terms for the same phenomena. 

Below are commonly used water terms and abbreviations with commonly used definitions.  If there is any 
discrepancy in definitions, the District's Regulations Governing Water Service is the final and binding definition.  

 

Acre Foot of Water - The volume of water (325,850 gallons, or 43,560 cubic feet) that would cover an area of 
one acre to a depth of 1 foot.  

Activated Sludge Process – A secondary biological sewer treatment process where bacteria reproduce at a 
high rate with the introduction of excess air or oxygen, and consume dissolved nutrients in the wastewater. 

Annual Water Quality Report - The document is prepared annually and provides information on water quality, 
constituents in the water, compliance with drinking water standards and educational material on tap water.  It is 
also referred to as a Consumer Confidence Report (CCR).  

Aquifer - The natural underground area with layers of porous, water-bearing materials (sand, gravel) capable of 
yielding a supply of water; see Groundwater basin.  

Backflow - The reversal of water's normal direction of flow.  When water passes through a water meter into a 
home or business it should not reverse flow back into the water mainline.  

Best Management Practices (BMPs) - Methods or techniques found to be the most effective and practical 
means in achieving an objective.  Often used in the context of water conservation.  

Biochemical Oxygen Demand (BOD) – The amount of oxygen used when organic matter undergoes 
decomposition by microorganisms.  Testing for BOD is done to assess the amount of organic matter in water. 

Biosolids – Biosolids are nutrient rich organic and highly treated solid materials produced by the sewer treatment 
process.  This high-quality product can be used as a soil amendment on farm land or further processed as an 
earth-like product for commercial and home gardens to improve and maintain fertile soil and stimulate plant 
growth. 

Catch Basin – A chamber usually built at the curb line of a street, which conveys surface water for discharge 
into a storm sewer. 

Capital Improvement Program (CIP) – Projects for repair, rehabilitation, and replacement of assets.  Also 
includes treatment improvements, additional capacity, and projects for the support facilities. 

Collector Sewer – The first element of a wastewater collection system used to collect and carry wastewater 
from one or more building sewer laterals to a main sewer. 

Coliform Bacteria – A group of bacteria found in the intestines of humans and other animals, but also 
occasionally found elsewhere and is generally used as an indicator of sewage pollution.   

Combined Sewer Overflow – The portion of flow from a combined sewer system, which discharges into a water 
body from an outfall located upstream of a wastewater treatment plant, usually during wet weather conditions. 

Combined Sewer System– Generally older sewer systems designed to convey both sewage and storm water 
into one pipe to a wastewater treatment plant. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - March 6, 2018 - Page 59 of 63



January 2016 
 

Conjunctive Use - The coordinated management of surface water and groundwater supplies to maximize the 
yield of the overall water resource.  Active conjunctive use uses artificial recharge, where surface water is 
intentionally percolated or injected into aquifers for later use.  Passive conjunctive use is to simply rely on surface 
water in wet years and use groundwater in dry years. 

Consumer Confidence Report (CCR) - see Annual Water Quality Report.  

Cross-Connection - The actual or potential connection between a potable water supply and a non-potable 
source, where it is possible for a contaminant to enter the drinking water supply. 

Disinfection By-Products (DBPs) - The category of compounds formed when disinfectants in water systems 
react with natural organic matter present in the source water supplies.  Different disinfectants produce different 
types or amounts of disinfection byproducts. Disinfection byproducts for which regulations have been established 
have been identified in drinking water, including trihalomethanes, haloacetic acids, bromate, and chlorite 

Drought - a period of below average rainfall causing water supply shortages.  

Dry Weather Flow – Flow in a sanitary sewer during periods of dry weather in which the sanitary sewer is under 
minimum influence of inflow and infiltration. 

Fire Flow - The ability to have a sufficient quantity of water available to the distribution system to be delivered 
through fire hydrants or private fire sprinkler systems.  

Gallons per Capita per Day (GPCD) - A measurement of the average number of gallons of water use by the 
number of people served each day in a water system. The calculation is made by dividing the total gallons of 
water used each day by the total number of people using the water system.  

Groundwater Basin - An underground body of water or aquifer defined by physical boundaries.  

Groundwater Recharge - The process of placing water in an aquifer.  Can be a naturally occurring process or 
artificially enhanced.  

Hard Water - Water having a high concentration of minerals, typically calcium and magnesium ions.  

Hydrologic Cycle - The process of evaporation of water into the air and its return to earth in the form of 
precipitation (rain or snow).  This process also includes transpiration from plants, percolation into the ground, 
groundwater movement, and runoff into rivers, streams and the ocean; see Water cycle.  

Infiltration – Water other than sewage that enters a sewer system and/or building laterals from the ground 
through defective pipes, pipe joints, connections, or manholes.  Infiltration does not include inflow.  See Inflow. 

Inflow - Water other than sewage that enters a sewer system and building sewer from sources such as roof 
vents, yard drains, area drains, foundation drains, drains from springs and swampy areas, manhole covers, cross 
connections between storm drains and sanitary sewers, catch basins, cooling towers, storm waters, surface 
runoff, street wash waters, or drainage.  Inflow does not include infiltration.  See Infiltration. 

Inflow / Infiltration (I/I) – The total quantity of water from both inflow and infiltration. 

Mains, Distribution - A network of pipelines that delivers water (drinking water or recycled water) from 
transmission mains to residential and commercial properties, usually pipe diameters of 4" to 16".  

Mains, Transmission - A system of pipelines that deliver water (drinking water or recycled water) from a source 
of supply the distribution mains, usually pipe diameters of greater than 16".  

Meter - A device capable of measuring, in either gallons or cubic feet, a quantity of water delivered by the District 
to a service connection.  

Overdraft - The pumping of water from a groundwater basin or aquifer in excess of the supply flowing into the 
basin. This pumping results in a depletion of the groundwater in the basin which has a net effect of lowering the 
levels of water in the aquifer.  

Peak Flow – The maximum flow that occurs over a specific length of time (e.g., daily, hourly, instantaneously). 

Pipeline - Connected piping that carries water, oil or other liquids.  See Mains, Distribution and Mains, 
Transmission. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - March 6, 2018 - Page 60 of 63



January 2016 
 

Point of Responsibility, Metered Service - The connection point at the outlet side of a water meter where a 
landowner's responsibility for all conditions, maintenance, repairs, use and replacement of water service facilities 
begins, and the District's responsibility ends.  

Potable Water - Water that is used for human consumption and regulated by the California Department of Public 
Health.  

Pressure Reducing Valve - A device used to reduce the pressure in a domestic water system when the water 
pressure exceeds desirable levels.  

Pump Station - A drinking water or recycled water facility where pumps are used to push water up to a higher 
elevation or different location.  

Reservoir - A water storage facility where water is stored to be used at a later time for peak demands or 
emergencies such as fire suppression.  Drinking water and recycled water systems will typically use concrete or 
steel reservoirs.  The State Water Project system considers lakes, such as Shasta Lake and Folsom Lake to be 
water storage reservoirs. 

Runoff - Water that travels downward over the earth's surface due to the force of gravity.  It includes water 
running in streams as well as over land.  

Sanitary Sewer System - Sewer collection system designed to carry sewage, consisting of domestic, 
commercial, and industrial wastewater. This type of system is not designed nor intended to carry water from 
rainfall, snowmelt, or groundwater sources.  See Combined Sewer System. 

Sanitary Sewer Overflow – Overflow from a sanitary sewer system caused when total wastewater flow exceeds 
the capacity of the system.  See Combined Sewer Overflow. 

Santa Ana River Interceptor (SARI) Line – A regional brine line designed to convey 30 million gallons per day 
of non-reclaimable wastewater from the upper Santa Ana River basin to the sewer treatment plant operated by 
Orange County Sanitation District. 

Secondary Treatment – Biological sewer treatment, particularly the activated-sludge process, where bacteria 
and other microorganisms consume dissolved nutrients in wastewater. 

Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) - A computerized system which provides the ability to 
remotely monitor and control water system facilities such as reservoirs, pumps and other elements of water 
delivery.  

Service Connection - The water piping system connecting a customer's system with a District water main 
beginning at the outlet side of the point of responsibility, including all plumbing and equipment located on a parcel 
required for the District's provision of water service to that parcel.  

Sludge – Untreated solid material created by the treatment of sewage. 

Smart Irrigation Controller - A device that automatically adjusts the time and frequency which water is applied 
to landscaping based on real-time weather such as rainfall, wind, temperature and humidity.  

Special District - A political subdivision of a state established to provide a public services, such as water supply 
or sanitation, within a specific geographic area.   

Surface Water - Water found in lakes, streams, rivers, oceans or reservoirs behind dams.  

Total Suspended Solids (TSS) – The amount of solids floating and in suspension in water or sewage. 

Transpiration - The process by which water vapor is released into the atmosphere by living plants.  

Trickling Filter – A biological secondary treatment process in which bacteria and other microorganisms, growing 
as slime on the surface of rocks or plastic media, consume nutrients in primary treated sewage as it trickles over 
them. 

Underground Service Alert (USA) - A free service that notifies utilities such as water, telephone, cable and 
sewer companies of pending excavations within the area (dial 8-1-1 at least 2 working days before you dig).  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - March 6, 2018 - Page 61 of 63



January 2016 
 

Urban Runoff - Water from city streets and domestic properties that typically carries pollutants into the storm 
drains, rivers, lakes, and oceans. 

Valve - A device that regulates, directs or controls the flow of water by opening, closing or partially obstructing 
various passageways.  

Wastewater – Any water that enters the sanitary sewer. 

Water Banking - The practice of actively storing or exchanging in-lieu surface water supplies in available 
groundwater basin storage space for later extraction and use by the storing party or for sale or exchange to a 
third party.  Water may be banked as an independent operation or as part of a conjunctive use program.  

Water cycle - The continuous movement water from the earth's surface to the atmosphere and back again; see 
Hydrologic cycle.  

Water Pressure - Pressure created by the weight and elevation of water and/or generated by pumps that deliver 
water to the tap.  

Water Service Line - The pipeline that delivers potable water to a residence or business from the District's water 
system.  Typically the water service line is a 1” to 1½” diameter pipe for residential properties.  

Watershed - A region or land area that contributes to the drainage or catchment area above a specific point on 
a stream or river.  

Water Table - The upper surface of the zone of saturation of groundwater in an unconfined aquifer.  

Water Transfer - A transaction, in which a holder of a water right or entitlement voluntarily sells/exchanges to a 
willing buyer the right to use all or a portion of the water under that water right or entitlement.  

Water Well - A hole drilled into the ground to tap an underground water aquifer.  

Wetlands - Lands which are fully saturated or under water at least part of the year, like seasonal vernal pools 
or swamps.  

Wet Weather Flow – Dry weather flow combined with stormwater introduced into a combined sewer system, 
and dry weather flow combined with infiltration/inflow into a separate sewer system. 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - March 6, 2018 - Page 62 of 63



January 2016 
 

 
  

COMMONLY USED ABBREVIATIONS 
 

AQMD Air Quality Management District 

BOD Biochemical Oxygen Demand 

CARB California Air Resources Board 

CCTV Closed Circuit Television 

CWA Clean Water Act 

EIR Environmental Impact Report 

EPA U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 

FOG Fats, Oils, and Grease 

GPD Gallons per day 

MGD Million gallons per day 

O & M Operations and Maintenance 

OSHA Occupational Safety and Health Administration  

POTW Publicly Owned Treatment Works 

PPM Parts per million 

RWQCB Regional Water Quality Control Board  

SARI Santa Ana River Inceptor 

SAWPA Santa Ana Watershed Project Authority 

SBVMWD San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District 

SCADA Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition system 

SSMP Sanitary Sewer Management Plan 

SSO Sanitary Sewer Overflow 

SWRCB State Water Resources Control Board  

TDS Total Dissolved Solids 

TMDL Total Maximum Daily Load 

TSS Total Suspended Solids 

WDR Waste Discharge Requirements 

YVWD Yucaipa Valley Water District 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - March 6, 2018 - Page 63 of 63




